
 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
ST. LUCIE LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD FOR THE 

TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED (LCB) 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Date:  Wednesday, June 15, 2016 
 
Time:  2:00pm   
 
Location:    St. Lucie Transportation Planning Organization (TPO) 
 466 SW Port St. Lucie Boulevard, Suite 111, Port St. Lucie 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Self-Introductions 
 
4. Approval of Minutes 

• March 16, 2016 Public Hearing 
• March 16, 2016 Regular Meeting  

5. Comments from the Public 
 
6. Approval of Agenda 
 
7. Action Items 
 

7a. Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) Evaluation:  An 
evaluation of the CTC in meeting the needs of the transportation 
disadvantaged population was conducted. The results of the evaluation 
will be presented.  

 
  Action:  Approve, approve with conditions, or do not approve 
 

7b. Trip and Equipment Grant Allocation and Trip Rate:  The Trip and 
Equipment Grant Allocation and Trip Rate which support public 
transportation access for transportation disadvantaged persons who are 
not sponsored by any other available funding source will be reviewed.  

 
Action:  Approve, approve with conditions, or do not approve 
 

 
 

Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 



June 15, 2016 LCB Regular Meeting Page 2 of 2 
 

7c. Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP) Minor 
Update:  A clarification regarding Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) 
eligibility is being made to the TDSP, the planning, operations, and 
quality assurance guidance document for the local TD program.  

 
Action:  Approve, approve with conditions, or do not approve 
 

7d. 2016 Meeting Schedule Revision:  A change to the December 2016 
meeting date is proposed.  

 
Action:  Approve, approve with conditions, or do not approve 

 
8. Discussion Items 
 

8a. Evaluation of Treasure Coast Connector (TCC) U.S. 1 Bus Stop 
and Infrastructure Locations:  An analysis of selected bus stop and 
bus shelter concerns along U.S. 1 will be presented. 

 
 Action:  Discuss and provide comments to staff. 

 
9.   FDOT Comments    
 
10.     Recommendations/Comments by Members 
 
11. Staff Comments 
 
12. Comments from the Public 
 
13. Next Meeting: The next LCB meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, 

September 14, 2016, 2:00pm, at the St. Lucie TPO, 466 SW Port St. Lucie 
Boulevard, Suite 111, Port St. Lucie, Florida. 

 
14. Adjourn 
 
NOTICES 
The St. Lucie TPO satisfies the requirements of various nondiscrimination laws and regulations including Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Public participation is welcomed without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, 
religion, disability, income, or family status. Persons wishing to express their concerns about nondiscrimination should 
contact Marceia Lathou, the Title VI/ADA Coordinator of the St. Lucie TPO, at 772-462-1593 or via email 
at lathoum@stlucieco.org. 
  
Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) or persons who require 
translation services (free of charge) should contact Marceia Lathou, 772-462-1593, at least five days prior to the 
meeting. Persons who are hearing or speech impaired may use the Florida Relay System by dialing 711.  
 
Items not included on the agenda may also be heard in consideration of the best interests of the public’s health, 
safety, welfare, and as necessary to protect every person’s right of access. If any person decides to appeal any 
decision made by the St. Lucie LCB with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, that person shall need a 
record of the proceedings, and for such a purpose, that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made which includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Kreyol Ayisyen: Si ou ta renmen resevwa enfòmasyon sa a nan lang Kreyòl Aysiyen, tanpri rele nimewo (772) 462-
1593. 
 
Español: Si usted desea recibir esta informaciòn en Español, por favor llame al 772-462-1593. 

 

mailto:lathoum@stlucieco.org


 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
ST. LUCIE LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD FOR THE 

TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED (LCB) 
Public Hearing and Training Workshop 

 
DATE:  Wednesday, March 16, 2016 
 
TIME:  2:00 pm  
 
LOCATION: St. Lucie TPO Boardroom 

Coco Vista Centre 
   466 SW Port St. Lucie Boulevard, Suite 111 
   Port St. Lucie, Florida 
 
 

MINUTES 
1. Call to Order 
 

Vice Chairperson Hensley called the meeting to order at 2:00 pm. 
 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
 Self-introductions were made. 
  

Members Present:   Representing: 
 

Paula Lewis, Chairperson St. Lucie TPO Board 
Kathryn Hensley, Vice Chairperson Public Education Community 

 Alan Love     Disable Community 
 Nelson Merchan-Cely   Citizen Advocate 
 Nancy Hess     Citizen Advocate/User 

Stacy Malinowski    Economically Disadvantaged  
Wibet Hay  FDOT 
Donna Mihok  FL Dept. of Children & Families 
Dalia Dillon  FL Dept. of Elder Affair 
Steve Palumbo FL Dept. of Vocational          

Rehabilitation 
Jay Lundy Regional Workforce Board 

 
Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 



March 16, 2016 LCB Public Hearing and Training Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3 
 

Marianne Arbore  Local Mass Transit 
Ronda Cerulli Local Medical Community 

 
Others Attending:   Representing: 

 
 Peter Buchwald    St. Lucie TPO 

Marceia Lathou    St. Lucie TPO 
 Melissa Carter    Recording Specialist 
 Tim Edwards    NFB 
 Doreen Franklin    NFB 
 Murriah Dekle    St. Lucie County Mass Transit 
 Marie Dorismond    FDOT 
 Krystal Sims    Stand UP for Independence 

/ Family Care Council-Area 5 
 Melody Hearn    Family Care Council-Area 5 
 Malcom Harris-Gowdie   Stand UP for Independence 
 Bolivar Gomez    Martin MPO 
 
 
4. Opening Public Comments- Ms. Melody Hearn, Tim Edwards, Krystal 

Sims, and Malcolm Harris-Gowdie spoke regarding the need for 
increased access to public transportation, particularly to employment. 

 
Ms. Arbore clarified that the commenters were referring to the demand 
response system. 
 
Ms. Lewis noted the CTC and Community Transit are constantly working 
to expand the system. She recommended that the commenters speak 
with Ms. Dekle and Ms. Arbore after the meeting because staff often 
can, through travel training and mobility management, help the public 
to maximize their use of the transit system.  

 
 
5. Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 

(FCTD)/Local Coordinating Board (LCB) Overview 
 
 Ms. Lathou presented the overview. A PowerPoint presentation 

described the purpose of the TD program, a description of the TD 
population, types of transportation, current funding sources, the role of 
the LCB, and the benefits of coordination. 

 
 
6. Transportation Disadvantaged (TD)/Coordinated Transportation 

Overview 
 

 



March 16, 2016 LCB Public Hearing and Training Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3 
 

 Ms. Dekle provided an overview of the funding sources and partnerships 
that support the coordinated system. She provided details regarding the 
numerous projects the CTC has brought to fruition including the 
Lakewood Park bus route, free youth rides, and extended hours for the 
bus service. Projects in development include bus shelters along U.S. 1. 
The CTC is involved in a variety of community outreach efforts that 
result in increased awareness of the transit system. 

 
 
7. TD Operator Overview on TD Services and Pubic Transportation 
 
 Ms. Arbore described the public transportation service in St. Lucie 

County. She provided background on Community Transit, a division of 
the Council on Aging of St. Lucie, Inc. (COASL), which is contracted by 
the St. Lucie BOCC to provide the service. She described characteristics 
of the demand response and fixed route bus services. The eligibility of 
riders for the demand response system was explained. A regional bus 
route map was displayed which showed connections to the Martin and 
Indian River Counties bus systems.  Ms. Arbore noted that ridership is 
low on the HANDS Clinic shuttle. Mr. Merchan-Cely and other LCB 
members offered their assistance in raising public awareness of the 
shuttle. 

 
 
8. Closing Public Comment-none 
 
 
9. Next Meeting - The next LCB meeting is a regular meeting scheduled 

for 2:00pm on Wednesday, June 15, 2016. 
 
 
10. ADJOURN - The meeting was adjourned at 2:30pm. 
 

Respectfully Submitted:  Approved by: 
 
 
 

____________________  ______________________ 
Melissa Carter    Paula Lewis 
Recording Specialist   Chairperson 

 
 

 



 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
ST. LUCIE LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD FOR THE 

TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED (LCB) 
Regular Meeting 

 
DATE:  Wednesday, March 16, 2016 
 
TIME:  Immediately following the 2:00pm Public Hearing 
 
LOCATION: St. Lucie TPO Boardroom 

Coco Vista Centre 
   466 SW Port St. Lucie Boulevard, Suite 111 
   Port St. Lucie, Florida 
 
 

MINUTES 
1. Call to Order 
 

Chairperson Lewis called the meeting to order at 2:40 pm. 
 

 
Members Present:   Representing: 

 
Paula Lewis, Chairperson St. Lucie TPO Board 
Kathryn Hensley, Vice Chairperson Public Education Community 

 Alan Love     Disabled Community 
 Nelson Merchan-Cely   Citizen Advocate 
 Nancy Hess     Citizen Advocate/User 

Stacy Malinowski    Economically Disadvantaged  
Wibet Hay  FDOT 
Donna Mihok  FL Dept. of Children & Families 
Dalia Dillon  FL Dept. of Elder Affair 
Steve Palumbo FL Dept. of Vocational          

Rehabilitation 
Jay Lundy Regional Workforce Board 
Marianne Arbore  Local Mass Transit 
Ronda Cerulli Local Medical Community 

 
Others Attending:   Representing: 

 
 Peter Buchwald    St. Lucie TPO 

Marceia Lathou    St. Lucie TPO 

 
Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 



March 16, 2016 LCB Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 6 
 

 Melissa Carter    Recording Specialist 
 Tim Edwards    NFB 
 Doreen Franklin    NFB 
 Murriah Dekle    St. Lucie County Mass Transit 
 Marie Dorismond    FDOT 
 Krystal Sims    Stand UP for Independence 

/ Family Care Council-Area 5 
 Melody Hearn    Family Care Council-Area 5 
 Malcom Harris-Gowdie   Stand UP for Independence 
 Bolivar Gomez    Martin MPO 

 
 

2. Confirmation of Quorum 
 
 A quorum of members was confirmed. 
   
  
3. Comments from the Public-None 
 
 
4. Approval of Minutes 

• December 16, 2015 Regular Meeting  

 
* MOTION – MOVED Ms. Hensley to approve the minutes of the 

December 16, 2015 Regular Meeting. 
 
** SECONDED by Ms. Dillon Carried UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
5. Approval of Agenda 
 
* MOTION – MOVED by Mr. Love to approve the agenda. 
 
** SECONDED by Ms. Arbore Carried UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
6. Action Items 
 

6a. Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan 
(TDSP)/Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services 
Transportation Plan (Coordinated Plan) Minor Update:  A review 
of the minor update of the TDSP/Coordinated Plan, which addresses the 

 



March 16, 2016 LCB Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 6 
 

transportation needs of older adults, persons with disabilities, low-
income persons, and children at risk. 
 
Ms. Lathou described the purpose of the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Service Plan which is a strategic plan for the delivery of public bus 
transportation for TD persons. She identified the requirements for 
developing a TDSP and outlined the required components of the TDSP. 
It was noted that the last major TDSP Update was conducted in 2013 
and the current revision is a minor update.  
 
Because the estimates and forecasts of the TD population are consistent 
with the TDSP Major Update, there were no significant changes made to 
the minor update. A change was made to reflect the addition of 
Lakewood Park Route #7 and there was also a change in Community 
Transit’s no show policy and the level of the driver’s pre-employment 
background checks. 

   
* MOTION – MOVED by Mr. Lundy to approve the TDSP/Coordinated 

Plan Minor Update.   
 
** SECONDED by Ms. Malinowski Carried UNANIMOUSLY 
 

This item required a Roll Call Vote: 
 
Ms. Lewis, Chairperson-For; Ms. Hensley, Vice-Chairperson-For; Mr. 
Love-For; Mr. Merchan-Cely –For; Ms. Hess-For; Ms. Malinowski-For; 
Ms. Hay; Ms. Mihok-For; Ms. Dillon-For; Mr. Palumbo-For; Mr. Lundy-
For; Ms. Arbore-For; Ms. Cerulli-For  

 
Thirteen members voted for approval of the TDSP Minor Update. 
 
 
6b. By-Laws Update: Review of an update of the By-Laws which 
provide a framework for the operation of the LCB. 

 
Ms. Lathou described the purpose of the By-laws which is to guide the 
operations of the LCB. Because the LCB has at times encountered 
difficulty in obtaining or maintaining a quorum, a change is being 
proposed to the composition of a quorum. The current quorum requires 
a majority of the members. It is proposed that a quorum consist of one-
third of members. Robert’s Rules of Order states that a quorum consists 
of a majority of members unless the by-laws state otherwise. The Florida 
Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged Local Coordinating 
Board and Planning Agency Operating Guidelines does not describe the 
composition of a quorum. 

 



March 16, 2016 LCB Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 6 
 

 
Ms. Lewis felt that part of the strength of the Board emanated from the 
diverse groups the members represent. If only six members were 
required that might diminish the Board’s impact. 
 
Mr. Love felt that any issues related to obtaining quorums could be 
resolved by members contacting their alternates if the member were 
unable to attend.  
 
Ms. Hensley acknowledged the difficulty that could result from meeting 
state requirements if a quorum could not be met. 
 
Mr. Lundy and Ms. Dillon were among the members who asserted that 
it was the responsibility of the LCB members to attend the meetings and 
that reminder phone calls should not be necessary.  

 
* MOTION – MOVED by Ms. Hensley to accept the By-laws as-is without 

the change in quorum proposed by staff. 
 
** SECONDED by Mr. Lundy Carried UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 

6c. Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) Evaluation 
Committee Appointments:  Selection of a LCB Committee to assist 
with the annual evaluation of the CTC. 

 
Ms. Lathou noted that the LCB is required to conduct an annual 
evaluation of the CTC. The FCTD provides a workbook for this purpose. 
The CTC evaluation consists of two parts:  a quantitative analysis and a 
qualitative analysis. A committee of the LCB assists with the qualitative 
analysis through participating in a demand response ride. In the past, 
the CTC committee has consisted of two agency representatives and a 
citizens representative. 
 
The members selected were Ms. Dillon, Mr. Merchan-Cely, and Ms. 
Mihok.  
 
It was the consensus of the LCB to accept the appointment of the three 
representative LCB volunteers to serve on the CTC Evaluation 
Committee. 

 
 
7. Information Items 
 

 



March 16, 2016 LCB Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 6 
 

7a. Florida Transportation Disadvantaged Commission 2016 
Legislative Priorities. 
 
Ms. Lathou explained that the legislative priorities of maintaining the 
funding and integrity of the TD program had been met and exceeded 
based on new funding opportunities being provided. 
 
 

8.   FDOT Comments  
 
 
9.    Recommendations/Comments by Members- Ms. Hay provided an 

update on the establishment of a mobility manager position for the 
region. She said a host agency has been selected and she provided 
information on the status of signing an agreement with that agency. 

 
Ms. Malinowski initiated a discussion regarding issues related to the 
location of bus stops and the lack of bus stop infrastructure at certain 
stops. Mentioned were stops at U.S. 1/Edwards Road and at Cashmere 
Boulevard/St. Lucie West Boulevard in front of the new Walmart. As a 
result of the discussion, the LCB requested that TPO staff analyze the 
location of bus stops along U.S. 1 as well as the suitability of bus stop 
shelters and/or benches. 

 
 
10. Staff Comments-Ms. Lathou noted a get-well card was circulating for 

Mary Holleran, the regular LCB recording specialist, who is recovering 
from knee surgery. Ms. Lathou also mentioned that Mr. Brewer regretted 
that he was unable to attend today’s meeting because he is out of town. 

 
 
11. Comments from the Public-Krista Sims and Malcolm Harris-Gowdie 

spoke regarding the need for improved public transportation options. 
They related problems in reaching their employment sites and in long 
wait times.  

 
 
12. Next Meeting:    The next LCB meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, 

June 15, 2016, 2:00 pm, at the St. Lucie TPO, 466 SW Port St. Lucie 
Boulevard, Suite 111, Port St. Lucie, Florida. 

 
 
13. ADJOURN - The meeting was adjourned at 3:26pm 
 

Respectfully Submitted:  Approved by: 

 



March 16, 2016 LCB Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 6 
 

 
 
 

____________________  ______________________ 
Melissa Carter    Paula Lewis 
Recording Specialist   Chairperson 

 
 

 

 



 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 
Board/Committee:  St. Lucie LCB 
 
Meeting Date: June 15, 2016 
 
Item Number: 7a 
 
Item Title: Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) 

Evaluation  
 
Item Origination: Florida Commission for the Transportation 

Disadvantaged (FCTD) 
 
UPWP Reference: Task 3.8 – Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) 

Program  
 
Requested Action: Approve the CTC Evaluation and set an annual 

percentage increase goal for ridership on the 
fixed route system. 

 
Staff Recommendation: Because the CTC meets or exceeds all FCTD 

standards, it is recommended that the CTC 
Evaluation be approved. It is recommended that 
a four percent increase for fixed route ridership 
be set which is consistent with ridership growth 
projections outlined in the current Transit 
Development Plan Major Update.  

 
 
Attachment 
• Staff Report 
• CTC Evaluation 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 



 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO: St. Lucie Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation 

Disadvantaged (LCB) 
 
THROUGH: Peter Buchwald 
 Executive Director 
 
FROM: Marceia Lathou 
 Transit Program Manager 
 
DATE: June 1, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) 

Evaluation 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The LCB is required to conduct an annual evaluation of the Community 
Transportation Coordinator (CTC). The Florida Commission for the 
Transportation Disadvantaged (FCTD) provides a workbook for this purpose. 
 
The role of the CTC is to ensure that safe, quality, coordinated transportation 
is provided or arranged in a cost-effective manner to serve transportation 
disadvantaged persons. The St. Lucie Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) 
is the CTC for St. Lucie County and contracts with Community Transit, a 
division of the Council on Aging of St. Lucie, Inc., for public transportation 
services. Therefore, the CTC evaluation assesses the performance of both the 
CTC and Community Transit with regard to the coordinated system.  
 
The CTC evaluation consists of two parts:  a qualitative analysis and a 
quantitative analysis. A demand response ride taken on Monday, April 15, 
2016 and a telephone survey of riders comprise the qualitative analysis. A 
quantitative analysis covering FCTD and local standards also was conducted. 
The results of the above analyses are documented in the attached CTC 
Evaluation. 
 
As part of the CTC Evaluation, the LCB is required to establish an annual 
percentage goal increase for the number of trips provided within the public 

Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 



June 1, 2016 Page 2 of 3 
 

transit system. In the past, the LCB has set a goal of seven percent for the 
fixed route system. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
CTC Evaluation 
 
The results of the rider survey indicate a high level of customer satisfaction 
with the demand response system. Riders commented on their gratitude for 
the service and the professionalism of the drivers and reservation staff. 
However, it was noted that more than 40 percent of riders responded they 
encountered a problem with their trip, most frequently related to late pick ups. 
During the prior year CTC Evaluation survey, approximately 10 percent of 
riders reported encountering a problem with their trip. 
 
The results of the demand response bus ride is that the service is operated in 
a safe, efficient, and effective manner. It was noted, however, that although 
the driver ensured all TD passengers secured their seatbelts, the driver did 
not ensure that the CTC evaluation committee members wore seatbelts. In 
addition, one committee member noted a sticky substance on the bus floor 
under a seat.  
 
Based on the results of the CTC Evaluation as documented in the attached 
surveys and worksheets, the CTC and Community Transit are meeting or 
exceeding all applicable FCTD standards. 
 
Public Transportation Ridership Goal 
 
Trips on the Treasure Coast Connector fixed-route system Routes 1-6 were 
analyzed. By the end of FY 13/14, a total of 185,849 trips were taken. By the 
end of FY 14/15, a total of 187,142 trips were taken. The result was an 
approximate one percent increase. During the prior year CTC review period, 
fixed route ridership increased approximately 11 percent. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

• Advise the CTC and Community Transit to monitor their monthly rider 
surveys to determine the validity of rider issues regarding late pick ups. 

• Advise the CTC and Community Transit to remind drivers that the 
seatbelt policy applies to all passengers. 

• Advise the CTC and Community Transit to review the cleaning schedule 
for the buses and to adjust the schedule as needed. 

 



June 1, 2016 Page 3 of 3 
 

• Continue to work with the CTC and Community Transit on strategies to 
increase ridership. 

• Approve the 2016 CTC Evaluation based on the CTC and Community 
Transit meeting or exceeding all FCTD standards. 

• Set an annual percentage goal increase of four percent for the number 
of trips provided on the fixed-route system. This percentage is 
consistent with ridership growth projections outlined in the current 
Transit Development Plan Major Update. 

 

































































 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 
Board/Committee:  St. Lucie LCB 
 
Meeting Date: June 15, 2016 
 
Item Number: 7b 
 
Item Title: Trip and Equipment Grant Allocation and Trip 

Rate 
 
Item Origination: Florida Commission for the Transportation 

Disadvantaged (FCTD) 
 
UPWP Reference: Task 3.8 – Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) 

Program  
 
Requested Action: Approve, approve with conditions, or do not 

approve. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Because the Trip and Equipment Grant 

Allocation and Trip Rate support transportation 
services and equipment that is not provided by 
any other funding source, it is recommended 
that the LCB approve the Trip and Equipment 
Grant Allocation and Trip Rate.  

 
 
Attachment 

• Staff report 
• FY 2016/17 TD Allocations Notice 
• Service Rates Worksheet 
• Trip & Equipment Grant Application Form 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 











 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 
Board/Committee:  St. Lucie LCB 
 
Meeting Date: June 15, 2016 
 
Item Number: 7c 
 
Item Title: Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan 

(TDSP)/Coordinated Public Transit-Human 
Services Transportation Plan (Coordinated Plan) 

 Minor Update 
 
Item Origination: Florida Commission for the Transportation 

Disadvantaged (FCTD) 
 
UPWP Reference: Task 3.8 – Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) 

Program  
 
Requested Action: Approve, approve with conditions, or do not 

approve. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Because the determination of eligibility criteria 

is critical for maintaining the integrity of the TD 
program and it is required that detailed 
eligibility information be contained in the TDSP, 
it is recommended that the TDSP Minor Update 
be approved. 

 
 
 
Attachment 

• Staff report 
• TD eligibility text 
• TD application 
• TD eligibility criteria 

 

 
 

 
Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 



 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

     
 
TO: St. Lucie Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation 

Disadvantaged (LCB) 
 
THROUGH: Peter Buchwald 
 Executive Director 
 
FROM: Marceia Lathou 
 Transit Program Manager 
 
DATE: June 1, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP)/ 

Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services 
Transportation Plan (Coordinated Plan) Minor Update 

______________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The St. Lucie Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP) addresses 
the public transportation needs of transportation disadvantaged (TD) persons 
in the TPO area. The most recent major update to the TDSP was adopted in 
September 2013. The TDSP covers a five-year period, with annual minor 
updates required for the interim years. The TDSP also fulfills the federal 
requirement for a Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation 
Plan (Coordinated Plan). 
 
The TDSP is jointly developed by TPO staff and the Community Transportation 
Coordinator (CTC) under the guidance and approval of the LCB. The TDSP 
contains Development, Service, and Quality Assurance sections.  

The Service section of the TDSP includes information on TD eligibility to ensure 
that individuals are eligible to have a portion of their transportation cost 
subsidized using TD funds. An eligibility screening process is developed by the 
CTC and LCB. In addition, the Florida Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged (FCTD) has established eligibility criteria that must be met. 
The FCTD eligibility criteria are listed below. 
 

• No other funding available 
• No other means of transportation available 

 
Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 



May 31, 2016 Page 2 of 2 
 

• Inability to use the fixed route public transit  
• Physical or mental disability 
• Age 
• Individual and household income 
• No self-determinations allowed 
• Ability to pay 

 
The FCTD requires that state and locally established eligibility criteria be 
included in the Service Element of the TDSP within the eligibility section.  This 
includes the eligibility application, the method by which eligibility will be 
determined, and a procedure to maintain customer eligibility screening and 
final determination. 

 
ANALYSIS 
 
A 2016 TDSP Minor Update was adopted by the LCB at its March 16, 2016 
regular meeting. The TDSP Update was reviewed by FCTD staff and the review 
commented on the need to include additional information regarding TD 
eligibility. Based on this comment, the Eligibility section of the TDSP has been 
revised. The revised section is shown as an attachment. Also attached is the 
TD eligibility application and the combined LCB/FCTD eligibility criteria. If the 
proposed TDSP Minor Update changes are adopted by the LCB, the TDSP Minor 
Update TD Eligibility section will be replaced in its entirety with the revised 
text; the application and eligibility criteria will be inserted as appendices.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Because the determination of eligibility criteria is critical for maintaining the 
integrity of the TD program and it is required that detailed eligibility 
information be contained in the TDSP, it is recommended that the TDSP Minor 
Update be approved. 

 



Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan - Minor Update  2016 
 
Eligibility 
 
In order   to   be  considered  for   ADA  complementary  service or 
Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) service,  an  individual  is required 
to  fill  out  an application  verified by a physician regarding the  nature  
of the  disability and why the individual cannot  use the  fixed  route  
system.  Self-declarations shall not be allowed. The application is 
shown in Appendix C. The combined LCB/FCTD eligibility criteria are 
clearly detailed in Appendix D.  
 
The application comes in three (3) different formats, English, Spanish 
and Creole.  The application must be completed in its entirety by the 
individual seeking either ADA or TD eligibility.  The first page of the 
application is for general information, name, address, phone number, 
date of birth, Medicaid number if applicable, etc.  The second page of 
the application is specific for TD eligibility.  This page ascertains whether 
the person has transportation by their own means or means of others 
and if their annual income exceeds 125% of the Federal Poverty 
Guidelines for households or individuals.  The third and fourth page of 
the application addresses whether the person can use the fixed route 
and what type of disability they have to prevent them from using the 
fixed route.  Page five through seven of the application asks questions 
to determine if there are any limits the applicant may have in using the 
fixed route.  And lastly page eight and nine is the verification from the 
medical provider on the applicant’s stated disability. 

 
Community Transit (CT) will review   the application and determine 
which program if any   the   individual is qualified  for.      All   programs 
have   a three    (3)   year certification period.  After three (3) years, the 
individual needs  to  recertify with Community Transit. If an  individual 
is  incapable of  filling out  the  application himself  or  herself, 
Community Transit's staff   will  assist  them  in  filling   out  the 
application.  The application eligibility determination process takes 
approximately twenty-one (21) days to complete. If the  individual 
qualifies for  ADA service, a membership card  is mailed  to the  individual 
indicating that  they  are qualified for ADA service  for  three  years  and 
identifies the  individual to  receive  a discounted rate. If the individual 
is qualified for   other   services, the   individual  will   be notified.  

 
Should  an  individual be  denied  services,  notification will  be  provided 
explaining the  reason   for  denial   and  advising   the  individual  of  the  
procedures  to  follow should  they  wish  to appeal. 
 



Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Eligibility 
 
The application process enables the reviewer to determine if the trip can 
be funded or performed by another agency or person or if the applicant 
can transport themselves.  If this is the case TD eligibility is denied.  The 
reviewer can also determine the person’s age, disability according to 
ADA, income and if the person is able to use the fixed route system.    
 
If the person is under 17 or 60 or over, cannot manipulate the fixed route, 
income is below 125% of the Federal Poverty Guidelines for households 
or individuals and the trip cannot be funded or performed by themselves, 
another agency or person, than the eligibility would be approved. 
 
If the person has a disability according to ADA and cannot manipulate 
the fixed route, their income is below 125% of the Federal Poverty 
Guidelines for households or individuals and the trip cannot be funded 
or performed by themselves, another agency or person, than the 
eligibility would be approved. 
 
Should an individual have a problem paying the fare, St. Lucie County 
will evaluate the individual according to their ability to pay and if they 
qualify, provide them with a pass to ride the system. 

 
 
 





















St. Lucie County Policy as to the Eligibility of Clients Using 

Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund (TDTF) Services 

 June 2016 

 

Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund (non-sponsored) monies may be 
used to fund trips for properly identified clients when: 

• No other funding is available for appropriate trips as defined in the 
approved Prioritization Policy when another purchasing agency is usually 
responsible for transportation or, 

• No other means of transportation is available including but not 
limited to relatives, friends, neighbors or free services offered by some 
institutions or; 

• Public Transit - The client is not capable of using fixed route public 
transit, or it is not available. 

• Physical or Mental Disability/Age - All clients referred for TDTF trips 
shall meet the minimum requirements of the referring agency and, or 
may be frail and elderly (60 years or older), or might have a physical or 
mental disability as outlined in the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

• Income Status - All clients referred for TDTF trips shall not exceed 
125% of Federal Poverty Guidelines for households or individuals if they 
do not meet the minimum requirements of the referring agency. 

• No Self declarations to the Community Transportation Coordinator 
shall be allowed. The application process used by the referring agency 
shall substantiate the client’s ability to meet the criteria established 
therein as well as in their individual criteria. 

• Ability to Pay – If a client cannot pay the fare for transportation, the 
CTC will evaluate the client based on information collected via the CTC 
‘Application for Assistance’ and Affidavit stating the clients’ need for 
transportation.   

Clients shall be enrolled by the agency which most appropriately meets his or 
her disability or age group.  

 



 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 
Board/Committee: St. Lucie LCB 
 
Meeting Date: June 15, 2016 
 
Item Number: 7d 
 
Item Title:  2016 Meeting Schedule Revision 
 
Item Origination: Florida Commission for the Transportation 

Disadvantaged (FCTD) 
 
UPWP Reference: Task 3.8 – Transportation Disadvantaged (TD)    
                                          Program  
 
Requested Action: Approve the proposed 2016 Meeting Schedule, 

approve with conditions, or do not approve. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Because the proposed 2016 Meeting Schedule 

meets the requirements of Florida law and 
facilitates the conduct of business by the LCB, it 
is recommended that the proposed 2016 Meeting 
Schedule be approved.  

 
 
Attachments 
• Staff report 
• Draft 2016 meeting schedule 
• FCTD/FPTA conference flyer 

 
Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 



 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
TO: St. Lucie Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation 

Disadvantaged (LCB) 
 
THROUGH: Peter Buchwald 
 Executive Director 
 
FROM: Marceia Lathou 
 Transit Program Manager 
 
DATE: June 1, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: 2016 Meeting Schedule Revision 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
As required by Florida law, the LCB meets at least quarterly at accessible 
locations as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
At its December 16, 2015, meeting the LCB approved a schedule of four 
meetings for 2016 with the last meeting of the year scheduled for 
December 14, 2016. Subsequent to the approval by the LCB of its meeting 
schedule, the Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged and 
the Florida Public Transportation Association scheduled their joint, annual 
conference for December 11-14, 2016. Therefore, it is proposed that the LCB 
meeting scheduled for December 14, 2016 be rescheduled to Wednesday, 
December 21, 2016. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Because the proposed revision to the 2016 Meeting Schedule meets the 
requirements of Florida law and facilitates the conduct of business by the LCB, 
it is recommended that the proposed 2016 Meeting Schedule be approved. 

Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 



 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 

DRAFT 

Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation Disadvantaged (LCB) 
2016 Meeting Schedule 

       Date             Type 

March 16, 2016       Annual Public Hearing/  
         Regular Meeting 
 
June 15, 2016       Regular Meeting 
 
September 14, 2016      Regular Meeting 
 
December 21, 2016      Regular Meeting 
 
Meeting Notes 
 
LCB meetings generally start at 2:00 p.m. 
Meetings are subject to change and/or cancellation. 
 
Location 
 
All meetings are held at the St. Lucie TPO, 466 SW Port St. Lucie Boulevard, 
Suite 111, Port St. Lucie, Florida 
 
NOTICES 
 
The St. Lucie TPO satisfies the requirements of various nondiscrimination laws and regulations including Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964. Public participation is welcome without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, 
disability, income, or family status. Persons wishing to express their concerns about nondiscrimination should contact 
Marceia Lathou, the Title VI/ADA Coordinator of the St. Lucie TPO, at 772-462-1593 or via email at 
lathoum@stlucieco.org.  
 
Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) or persons who require 
translation services (free of charge) should contact Marceia Lathou, 772-462-1593, at least five days prior to the 
meeting. Persons who are hearing or speech impaired may use the Florida Relay System by dialing 711.  
 
Items not included on the agenda may also be heard in consideration of the best interests of the public’s health, safety, 
welfare, and as necessary to protect every person’s right of access. If any person decides to appeal any decision made 
by the St. Lucie TPO with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, that person shall need a record of the 
proceedings, and for such a purpose, that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 
made which includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Kreyol Ayisyen: Si ou ta renmen resevwa enfòmasyon sa a nan lang Kreyòl Aysiyen, tanpri rele nimewo (772) 462-
1593. 
 
Español: Si usted desea recibir esta informaciòn en español, por favor llame al 772-462-1593. 

 
Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 



Save the Date
2016 Annual Training
December 11-14, 2016

Jacksonville, FL
 

Florida
Public Transportation

Association
&

Commission for the
Transportation Disadvantaged

For More Info:
LisaBacot@floridatransit.org



 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 
Board/Committee:  St. Lucie LCB 
 
Meeting Date: June 15, 2016 
 
Item Number: 8a 
 
Item Title: Evaluation of Treasure Coast Connector (TCC) 

Bus Stop Locations and Provision of 
Infrastructure 

 
Item Origination: LCB 
 
UPWP Reference: Task 3.8 – Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) 

Program  
 
Requested Action: Discuss and provide comments to staff. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Discuss and provide comments to staff.  
 
 
Attachment 

• Staff report 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 



 

Coco Vista Centre 
466 SW Port St. Lucie Blvd, Suite 111 

Port St. Lucie, FL  34953 
772-462-1593     www.stlucietpo.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

     
 
TO: St. Lucie Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation 

Disadvantaged (LCB) 
 
THROUGH: Peter Buchwald 
 Executive Director 
 
FROM: Marceia Lathou 
 Transit Program Manager 
 
DATE: June 1, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Evaluation of Treasure Coast Connector (TCC) U.S. 1 

Bus Stop and Infrastructure Locations 
______________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Bus Stop and Infrastructure Locations 
 
Transit agencies must consider numerous factors when establishing bus stops 
and installing shelters or benches. Criteria for establishing bus stop locations 
include both demand-side and supply-side factors as shown in Table 1.  

Table 1 – Criteria for Determination of Bus Stop Locations 

Demand-Side Factors Supply-Side Factors 
 Land use and urban form 
 Development density 
 Passenger volumes/proximity 

to major origins and 
destinations 

 Passenger recommendation 

 Right-of-way width/Consent of the jurisdiction having authority 
over the affected right-of-way 

 Pedestrian and vehicular safety 
 ADA accessibility 
 Traffic volume and speed 
 Characteristics of community and adjacent property 
 Location of sidewalks, lighting fixtures, and driveways 
 Ease of transfer, proximity of stop for the route in opposite 

direction 
 Agency’s network design, scheduling, and operational objectives 
 Visibility of transit service 
 Driver recommendation 
 Distance from hazardous locations such as drainage and ditches, 

railroad crossings and canals 

Source:  Gannett Fleming, Inc. 

 
Transportation Planning for Fort Pierce, Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie Village and St. Lucie County 



June 1, 2016 Page 2 of 15 
 

Constraints exerted by supply-side factors often outweigh the demand side. 
Safety is a primary concern. Sidewalk and crosswalk conditions near a stop 
must be evaluated to ensure safe passage. Sites must have room not only for 
the bus stop, but also for the buses, riders waiting on the buses, and others 
who use the surrounding area. Bus stops and shelters are preferably placed 
away from existing utilities and overhead obstructions such as tree limbs, 
awnings, balconies and other signage. Sight lines and visual obstructions are 
added concerns.  Shelters, for example, should not obstruct traffic signage or 
block sight lines for those traveling on the roadway. Transit agencies also are 
sensitive to adjacent property owners. While not always possible, the 
preference is to establish bus stops and infrastructure where they do not block 
views of windows, doors, signage or storefronts. 

Right-of-way availability is a critical concern. In cases where available space 
is limited, transit agencies may be required to request easements from nearby 
property owners. 

In general, bus stops should be located at major intersections and at transfer 
points. Bus stops also should provide access to major activity centers such as 
colleges, shopping plazas, and hospitals. In determining the optimum spacing 
of bus stops, transit agencies must balance the needs of passengers with the 
need for operational efficiency. Table 2 summarizes widely used industry 
guidelines for bus stop spacing provided in Reports 19 and 69 by the Transit 
Cooperative Research Program (TCRP) and the National Cooperative Highway 
Research Program (NCHRP), respectively. 

Table 2 – Bus Stop Spacing 

 TCRP Report 19 
Range (typical spacing)* 

NCHRP Report 69 
Range* 

High-density residential 
areas, CBDs, and major 
employment centers 

300 – 1,000 (600) 440 - 528 

High-density residential 
and employment areas 

500 – 1,000 (750) 660 - 880 

Suburban residential 
areas (4 to 22 
units/acre) 

600 – 2,500 (1,000) 1,056 – 2,640 

Rural areas 650 – 2,640 (1,250) 1,320 – 2,640 
Source:  Districts One & Seven – Transit Facility Handbook 2007                          *Dimensions in feet 

During its March 16, 2016 regular meeting, LCB members initiated a 
discussion of the location of stops and bus stop infrastructure along the U.S. 1 
corridor. The LCB directed TPO staff to report back with an analysis, with 
particular emphasis on the bus stops near Mustard Seed Ministries.  

 



June 1, 2016 Page 3 of 15 
 

 
U.S. 1/Edwards Road Bus Stops 

Mustard Seed Ministries is located on the northbound side of U.S. 1 near the 
intersection of Edwards Road in Fort Pierce. This section of U.S. 1 is served by 
the Treasure Coast Connector (TCC) fixed-route bus service which runs on 
hourly headways. Bus stops are located both northbound and southbound on 
U.S. 1 near Edwards Road. Both stops are designated with signs only. The 
northbound stop lies adjacent to a sidewalk. There is no sidewalk in front of 
the Public Storage/Twin Vee properties where the southbound stop is located. 
Because U.S. 1 carries a high volume of traffic at high speeds, riders using 
the southbound bus stop are exposed to hazardous conditions. See Figures 1 
and 2. 

 

Figure 1 – U.S. 1/Edwards Road Southbound Bus Stop 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



June 1, 2016 Page 4 of 15 
 

Figure 2 – U.S. 1/Edwards Road Southbound Bus Stop 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



June 1, 2016 Page 5 of 15 
 

Although the U.S. 1/Edwards Road northbound stop is adjacent to a sidewalk, 
crossing a wide planting strip is required to access the bus. See Figure 3. The 
sidewalk is set back far enough from the street that a bus driver could possibly 
miss seeing passengers waiting on the sidewalk. 

Figure 3 – U.S. 1/Edwards Road Northbound Bus Stop 

 

 

HANDS Clinic Access 

In addition to the March 2016 bus stop discussion, a long-standing concern 
for the LCB has been access to the HANDS Clinic. HANDS of St. Lucie provides 
primary care, dental care, and health education for low-income, uninsured 
persons. HANDS also provides oral health screening and education in schools. 
HANDS is located on U.S. 1 between Midway Road and Edwards Road in the 
Gwenda Thompson Government Center, formerly known as the St. Lucie 
County Logistics Center. (Note:  Ms. Thompson was a former LCB member.) 
The nearest TCC bus stops are southbound/northbound stops at Tumblin Kling 
Road and at Farmers Market Road/Dickson Drive. Either bus stop location is 
approximately one-half mile distance from the Clinic when adding the building 
setback. (The entrance to HANDS, a former Sam’s Club, is set back more than 
600 feet from the street.) See Figures 4, 5, and 6. Recently, FDOT funded a 
shuttle service which runs from the Fort Pierce Intermodal Station to the 
HANDS Clinic; ridership on the shuttle has been low, and therefore, has not 
solved the access issue. 

 



June 1, 2016 Page 6 of 15 
 

Figure 4 – HANDS Clinic Location 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



June 1, 2016 Page 7 of 15 
 

Figure 5 – HANDS Clinic Location 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



June 1, 2016 Page 8 of 15 
 

Figure 6 – HANDS Clinic Location 

 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
U.S. 1 Bus Stop/Shelter Locations 
 
St. Lucie County, and its contracted public transportation provider, 
Community Transit, a division of the Council on Aging, St. Lucie, Inc., are 
responsible for the placement of bus stops and stop infrastructure throughout 
the TPO area. Bus routes are established based on the most recent Transit 
Development Plan (TDP). The TDP, which was last updated in 2014, is the 
transit provider’s planning, development, and operational guidance document, 
based on a ten-year planning horizon.  The location of stops and the 
installation of benches and shelters are determined by the demand-side and 
supply-side considerations described above.  
 
Installation of bus shelters at selected locations along U.S. 1 has commenced, 
based on extensive field review and prioritization as part of the Capital 
Improvement Plan for the U.S. 1 Corridor. Plan implementation is funded by 
FDOT through a $500,000 transit grant to support the regional transit services 
currently operating within the corridor in Martin and St. Lucie counties.  Table 
3 lists the shelter locations. Map 1 depicts the locations of existing TCC stops. 

 



June 1, 2016 Page 9 of 15 
 

Figure 7 shows the shelter design; the style will be as shown, however, the 
side panels will be perforated instead of plexiglass. The project is estimated 
to be completed before 2017. 
 
 

Table 3 – Locations of Future U.S. 1 Bus Shelters 
 

County Location 
St. Lucie Benton Building 
St. Lucie K-Mart Plaza 
St. Lucie Sabal Palm Plaza (pending easement by shopping plaza) 
St. Lucie Midway Rd north 
St. Lucie Midway Rd south 
St. Lucie Rio Mar north 
St. Lucie Rio Mar south 
St. Lucie Prima Vista Crossings 
St. Lucie Chase Bank 
St. Lucie CVS Pharmacy 
St. Lucie TC Medical Center 
Martin Cracker Barrel 
Martin Lowes & BJ’s 
Martin Pineapple Commons 
Martin Britt Road 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



June 1, 2016 Page 10 of 15 
 

Map 1 – U.S. 1 Bus Route Map 

 
 

 

javascript:close()


June 1, 2016 Page 11 of 15 
 

Figure 7 – Bus Shelter Design 

 
 
 
U.S. 1/Edwards Road Bus Stops 
 
The deficiencies of the Edwards Road bus stops were noted in the U.S. 1 
Capital Improvement Plan. Both the southbound and northbound stops were 
recommended for bus shelters. Based on the following criteria used to 
prioritize stops in need of improvements, the Edwards Road stops were not 
prioritized for implementation.  
 

• Category I: Usage and Connectivity (40 points) 
• Category II: Ease of Implementation (20 points) 
• Category III: Accessibility and Quality (25 points) 
• Category IV: Access to Activity Centers (15 points) 

The criteria and weighting were developed based on the data collection 
process, input from technical resources, and professional judgment. 
 
The FY 2016/17 – FY 2020/21 Transportation Improvement Program for the 
TPO Area includes a project that will improve conditions at the Edwards Road 
bus stops. The project, which has limits along U.S. 1 between Midway Road 
and Edwards Road, involves resurfacing of the roadway and construction of 
sidewalks to fill sidewalk gaps. According to FDOT, the existing right-of-way 
on U.S. 1 south of Edwards Road appears to have adequate space for the 
installation of bus shelters and possibly bus bays. See Figure 8. The estimated 
start of construction for the resurfacing project is FY 2017/18.  

 

http://www.duo-gard.com/products/shelters/bus-shelters/reverse-barrel-vault/


June 1, 2016 Page 12 of 15 
 

 
Figure 8 – U.S. 1/Edwards Road Right-of-Way 

 
 
 
HANDS Clinic Access 
 
St. Lucie County and Community Transit staff are exploring options to increase 
ridership on the HANDS Clinic shuttle. Efforts include working closely with 
HANDS staff and enhanced marketing. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
U.S. 1 Bus Stop/Shelter Locations 
 
Bus stops with full infrastructure enhance the transit experience, decrease 
perceived wait times for transit services, and can contribute to increased 
ridership. Bus signs, riders waiting on the bus, bus benches, and bus shelters 
are visual cues that inform riders of the specifics of a route. As mentioned 

 



June 1, 2016 Page 13 of 15 
 

above, the U.S. 1 bus shelter program is scheduled for completion in 2016. 
The shelters undoubtedly will raise awareness of the bus service which will 
likely increase ridership along all U.S. 1 stops, not just stops with shelters. 
Therefore, no additional recommendations regarding bus stop/shelter 
locations are proposed at this time. 
 
 
U.S. 1/Edwards Road Bus Stops  
     
Due to the lack of sidewalks, the southbound bus stop at U.S. 1/Edwards Road 
is located in a planting strip near a busy roadway.  Conditions will improve 
once sidewalks are installed as part of the U.S. 1 resurfacing project. Placing 
a bench at this location in the interim would not improve safety. 
 
Based on preliminary estimates, the right-of-way at the northbound U.S. 
1/Edwards Road bus stop could support a wide range of improvements which 
could be installed as part of the U.S. 1 resurfacing project. In the interim, a 
bus bench could be installed in the vicinity of, although not necessarily 
adjacent to, this bus stop. 
 

• Advise riders waiting at the southbound stop to stand as far away from 
the road as possible. Develop a graphic that indicates safe waiting areas 
within the public rights-of-way adjacent to Twin Vee/Public Storage 
properties. See Figure 9. 

• Alert bus drivers that riders at the southbound stop could be standing 
near, but not necessarily adjacent to, the bus stop sign.  

• Continue CTC/Mustard Seed Ministries coordination to place a bus bench 
in the vicinity of the northbound U.S. 1/Edwards Road bus stop. 

• Continue FDOT/transit agency coordination to incorporate enhanced 
infrastructure as part of the U.S. 1 resurfacing project. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



June 1, 2016 Page 14 of 15 
 

Figure 9 – U.S. 1/Edwards Road Southbound 
Bus Stop Waiting Area 

 
 
 
HANDS Clinic Access 
 
The following recommendations relate to improving access to the HANDS 
Clinic. 
 

• Explore the use of Section 5310 funds for the purchase of a vehicle to 
shuttle clients to/from the nearest bus stops or their homes. 

• Explore the use of ride-hailing app services such as Uber to transport 
clients to/from the nearest bus stops or their homes. 

• Add a Treasure Coast Connector (TCC) bus stop on the southbound U.S. 
1 route that would drop passengers off near the entrance of the HANDS 
Clinic provided that such a stop would not adversely impact the existing 
route operations. 

o If a TCC stop at HANDS were implemented, HANDS clients 
travelling northbound from the Clinic should be provided with free 
transfers. The clients could then take the southbound bus to 
Midway Road, disembark, cross U.S. 1 and wait at the northbound 
bus stop, the site of a future bus shelter. The wait time for a 
northbound bus would be approximately 15 minutes. Advise 
HANDS clients of this option through travel training. 

o If a TCC stop at HANDS were implemented, clients who access the 
Clinic from the south would be provided with free transfers. The 
clients could then bypass the HANDS Clinic on the northbound bus 

 



June 1, 2016 Page 15 of 15 
 

and remain on the northbound bus which becomes a southbound 
bus after leaving the Fort Pierce Intermodal Station. The additional 
travel time would be approximately 30 minutes. Advise HANDS 
clients of this option through travel training. 

 

 


	June 2016 Meeting Agenda
	March 16 2016 LCB Public Hearing-Training Workshop Minutes Draft
	CTC Evaluation agenda summary
	March 16 2016 LCB Regular Meeting Minutes Draft
	ctc eval staff report
	20160607105156293
	trip equipment agenda summary
	tdsp minor update agenda summary
	TD eligibility staff report  june 1
	TDSP TD Eligibility Section - Marianne
	Agenda Item Summary - Meeting Schedule
	meeting schedule revision staff report
	2016 calendarREV
	2016 Annual Conf Save the Date
	bus stop agenda summary
	bus stop Staff Report- 2016REV 6 2 2016

